

1 A [Witness Jacobus] Yes. Would you like me to give
2 you more detail on that?

3 Q Well, what I -- let me refer you first to page
4 seven of your testimony. Do you have that in front of you?

5 A [Witness Jacobus] Page seven? I do.

6 Q About -- the second paragraph on that page, about
7 halfway down, the sentence reads, "The inspectors did not
8 agree that the similarity analysis was sufficient and felt
9 that the quoted IRs were totally unrealistic." Do you see
10 that sentence?

11 A [Witness Jacobus] That's correct.

12 Q Okay. So, the second half of that, again, is -- I
13 mean am I correct to characterize that as saying what you
14 just told me now, that your real problem was that the
15 temperatures -- the data was at a temperature you didn't
16 feel was acceptable?

17 A [Witness Jacobus] That is correct.

18 Q And so that was the real reason that you felt that
19 the reports, as it were, were dissimilar.

20 A [Witness Jacobus] That -- that is the major
21 reason.

22 Q Okay. And you said that they did not agree that
23 the similarity analysis was sufficient otherwise. That's
24 the first half of that sentence.

25 A [Witness Jacobus] That's correct.

1 Q Okay. And no other detail was given in your
2 inspection report, was it?

3 A [Witness Jacobus] That is correct.

4 Q Okay.

5 Now, the reason for finding the similarity to be
6 insufficient was dimensional?

7 A [Witness Jacobus] That was one of two primary
8 reasons.

9 Q Okay. And dimension was or was not something that
10 Alabama Power Company addressed in their analysis?

11 A [Witness Jacobus] It was something that they
12 considered, but in my view, they considered it incorrectly.

13 Q Okay.

14 Did the step arrangement of the Connectron blocks
15 have anything to do with your dissimilarity conclusion?

16 A [Witness Jacobus] Yes, it did. That was the most
17 important part.

18 Q Okay.

19 Now, you felt that, because the Connectron block
20 was stepped, that was what? That dimension would be a
21 preventive measure with respect to the moisture film that
22 was going to cause the instrument accuracy?

23 A No. It would change the distances between
24 adjacent terminals. APCo, in the analysis, considered the
25 horizontal distance between adjacent terminals and said that

1 the States and GE terminal blocks had larger distances
2 between terminals.

3 However, it did not consider the additional
4 distance that you would get on the Connectron blocks because
5 of the blocks having the step configuration.

6 To take it to extremes, let's say the -- the
7 horizontal -- the horizontal -- or the vertical offset was
8 one foot and there was a half-an-inch between terminals.
9 What is the approximate distance between terminals, between
10 the electrical connections?

11 Well, it's very close to one foot, but if we only
12 look at the distance between terminals, we may come to a
13 very different conclusion as Alabama Power Company.

14 Q Was the vertical dimensions of the Connectron
15 blocks one foot?

16 A [Witness Jacobus] No, it was not.

17 Q It was significantly less than one foot, wasn't
18 it?

19 A [Witness Jacobus] Yes, it was. It was small.

20 Q Can you tell me what it was relative to the
21 horizontal dimension?

22 A [Witness Jacobus] I have photographs of them. I
23 could not find or could not read the actual dimensions on
24 the drawings that I was supplied by Alabama Power.

25 Q How big are these blocks? Let's take a States.

1 A [Witness Jacobus] They will easily fit in my
2 hand, roughly the size of one of the old book-match books,
3 the boxes of stick matches.

4 Q And that would be with how many poles?

5 A [Witness Jacobus] That would be, say, a six-pole
6 block.

7 Q Now, a Connectron block, also six poles, would
8 that be about the same size?

9 A [Witness Jacobus] Roughly. It would fit in your
10 hand.

11 Q So, we're talking about dimensions between poles
12 of an inch or so.

13 A [Witness Jacobus] More like, probably, center to
14 center spacing of a half-an-inch or so, maybe three-
15 quarters.

16 Q Now, in Sandia's testing which resulted in your
17 finding that a moisture film is the cause of the instrument
18 accuracy problems, is there any -- does Sandia have any data
19 to show when moisture films appear or how they appear?

20 A [Witness Jacobus] Only from the results of the
21 test.

22 You look at when the insulation resistance is
23 lowest, and at that point, you assume you have essentially
24 the worst moisture films, and when the data begins to
25 recover, you assume essentially that the moisture films are

1 starting to go away.

2 Q So, basically, in finding the two blocks
3 dissimilar, you were relying on your engineering judgment?

4 A [Witness Jacobus] I was relying on the fact that
5 this other dimension, this vertical dimension had not been
6 considered. To me that is not engineering judgment. If you
7 don't consider something that's potentially important, it's
8 wrong.

9 Q Okay. So, you're not saying that the vertical
10 dimension necessarily makes it dissimilar?

11 A [Witness Jacobus] No. I didn't say that.

12 Q You're just saying it wasn't considered at all?

13 A [Witness Jacobus] Right.

14 Q You didn't see it addressed in the similarity
15 analysis?

16 A [Witness Jacobus] That is correct.

17 Q And you don't have an opinion one way or the other
18 as to whether it makes a difference?

19 A [Witness Jacobus] In general, my belief is that
20 it's fairly difficult to do a similarity analysis of
21 terminal blocks if you have severe accident conditions that
22 you're addressing. It's very difficult to do a similarity
23 analysis of radically different blocks like that and very
24 different configurations. Even blocks that looked fairly
25 similar, that you almost might confuse in our tests had some

1 different performance.

2 Q So, are you saying because you believe these
3 blocks are radically dissimilar, is that the word you just
4 used?

5 A [Witness Jacobus] Well, let's soften that just a
6 little bit. They are dissimilar configurations. They also
7 may have different surface characteristics. The way
8 moisture films may form, they can get into different
9 crevices and things like that on the blocks. Those are very
10 difficult to address.

11 Q Surface -- what were your words?

12 A [Witness Jacobus] Surface characteristics.

13 Q Surface characteristics.

14 A [Witness Jacobus] That would be the second reason
15 -- the second area where the APCo similarity analysis was
16 not adequate. It did not address that at all. It only
17 addressed the material itself and not the surface
18 characteristics.

19 Q Did you ever mention surface characteristics in
20 your inspection finding?

21 A [Witness Jacobus] No, I didn't. All I said was
22 that the dissimilarity analysis was inadequate.

23 Q Did you ever address surface characteristics in
24 your notice of violation or the order imposing a civil
25 penalty?

1 A [Witness Jacobus] I did not prepare those
2 documents.

3 Q Did you ever address service characteristics in
4 your testimony?

5 A [Witness Jacobus] I don't know if I specifically
6 addressed those or not.

7 Q So you don't remember what you said in your direct
8 testimony?

9 A [Witness Jacobus]" I think -- I believe I said
10 something to that effect.

11 Q So, basically, you're telling me that you would
12 not ever find a similarity analysis between these two blocks
13 to be acceptable?

14 A [Witness Jacobus] That is not what I'm saying.
15 It would depend on the environments that the terminal blocks
16 were required to function in, as I mentioned earlier.

17 Q So, if they had -- if the connectron blocks had
18 been tested at peak LOCA temperatures, you might have found
19 them similar?

20 A [Witness Jacobus] No, no. You're not with me.

21 Q In more ways than one.

22 A [Witness Jacobus] In effect, if the terminal
23 blocks are exposed to fairly mild conditions, from a
24 technical standpoint, there's very little that you have to
25 do to show similarity. Okay?

1 Q Right.

2 [Witness Jacobus] If the blocks are exposed to
3 fairly severe conditions, you have to do much more.

4 Q And you are looking for them to be addressed for
5 fairly severe conditions?

6 A [Witness Jacobus] That was my understanding of
7 when they were required --

8 Q Okay. And, in fact, that would be --

9 A [Witness Jacobus] -- when they were required to
10 be qualified.

11 Q In fact, that would be for the worst case possible
12 conditions?

13 A [Witness Jacobus] It depends when you're talking
14 about. At the time of the inspection, that was the only
15 information that I had.

16 Q That's what you were looking for?

17 A [Witness Jacobus] That's correct.

18 Q Mr. Luehman, this issue, again, came to you in the
19 enforcement process; is that correct?

20 A [Witness Luehman] Yes, it did.

21 Q On page 21 of your testimony, answer 19, are you
22 with me?

23 A [Witness Luehman] Yes, I am.

24 Q APCo, after the inspection had to do significant
25 analysis to attempt to assess the qualification status of

1 the terminal blocks; do you see that?

2 A [Witness Luehman] Yes.

3 Q What analysis are you talking about?

4 A [Witness Luehman] Well, I think that probably Dr.
5 Jacobus and Mr. Merriweather will probably have to help me
6 here. But, my understanding is that at the time of the
7 inspection, the -- the terminal blocks were required to be --
8 -- were stated to be have to be qualified to some
9 temperature, I think, that was in excess of 300 degrees.
10 And that's what the inspection findings were made on.

11 Subsequently, at the meeting in Atlanta that
12 occurred in a week or two later that has already been
13 referred to in their testimony, Alabama Power made an
14 argument for a somewhat lower temperature that the blocks
15 would have to be qualified to and now, in testimony that --
16 in pre-file testimony, Alabama Power is asserting that the
17 blocks now have to be qualified -- I guess the temperature
18 that's been thrown around here is 150 degrees.

19 So, what I'm saying is that a significant analysis
20 had to be done because it appears that the licensee's basis
21 for what was acceptable has changed from in excess of 300
22 degrees to 290 something degrees, now to less than 150
23 degrees. And that's what we're referring to as the
24 significant analysis.

25 Q Okay. And it was your understanding that Alabama

1 Power Company's position all along was that the blocks were
2 qualified; is that right?

3 A [Witness Luehman] They maintained that they were
4 qualified, but they kept changing what their basis for that
5 was it appears.

6 Q But they maintained, they were trying to show and
7 satisfy the staff that the blocks were qualified?

8 A [Witness Luehman] That's what they tried to do,
9 yes.

10 Q Okay. And they provided an evaluation first in
11 October of '87 to try to address the staff's concern? Did
12 you ever review that document?

13 A [Witness Luehman] Yes, I think I have.

14 Q And did you review it before you issued the notice
15 of violation?

16 A [Witness Luehman] I think we did, yes.

17 Q Think or you know?

18 A [Witness Luehman] I cannot state for a fact. But
19 I am -- but I know that it was reviewed by the staff, if not
20 personally, by me.

21 Q Okay. So, you don't know and you don't -- and you
22 don't know whether it was -- you said "we," is that somebody
23 other than you?

24 A [Witness Luehman] As I've stated, I think -- I'm
25 sure that it was reviewed by other people. I know that -- I

1 cannot recall specifically that I looked at it. I know that
2 I have looked at it. When in this process was the first
3 time I looked at it, I cannot recall.

4 Q Okay. And then in November 1987 Alabama Power
5 Company prepared a justification for continued operation.
6 Do you recall that?

7 A [Witness Luehman] Just the discussion of it
8 that's gone on.

9 Q Now, do you recall that that JCO was prepared at
10 the request of the NRC?

11 A [Witness Luehman] No, I do not.

12 Q So, you don't know that one way or the other?

13 A [Witness Luehman]" Not at this time, no, I don't.

14 Q Okay. And do you know or did you review before
15 writing this sentence in your direct testimony -- did you
16 ascertain whether or not that JCO -- strike that.

17 Isn't it fair to say, Mr. Luehman, that that JCO
18 was just another attempt by Alabama Power Company to
19 convince the staff of the Power Company's position?

20 A [Witness Luehman] Well, the justification for
21 continued operation can -- is designed to allow the plant to
22 continue to operate. I don't know that we would have
23 necessarily accepted that as a qualification argument. We
24 might have accepted it as a justification for continued
25 operation. But --

1 Q We all know the NRC didn't accept it as a
2 qualification argument. That's why we're here.

3 A [Witness Luehman] Uh-huh. That's correct.

4 Q But, in fact, it was intended to show that these
5 terminal blocks didn't need to be qualified for the same
6 temperature and conditions which the staff alleged; is that
7 right?

8 A [Witness Luehman] Without reviewing it, I'd have
9 to take your word for it.

10 Q So you don't know?

11 A [Witness Luehman] Not right now.

12 Q You also were involved in the "clearly should have
13 known" finding on this issue; is that correct?

14 A [Witness Luehman] That is correct.

15 Q Prior to writing that finding, did you review the
16 Franklin TER of 1983?

17 A [Witness Luehman] I don't recall whether I
18 reviewed the TER on this specific issue or not.

19 Q Did you review the meeting minutes for the January
20 11, 1984 meeting?

21 A [Witness Luehman] I think that we did review the
22 meeting minutes. We did have some discussions on the
23 meeting minutes, yes.

24 Q Who be "we?"

25 A [Witness Luehman] I know that I had those with

1 Bob Weismann of the Office of General Counsel, in specific.
2 I cannot recall the particular members of the Technical
3 Staff by name, although I would assume that it was probably
4 the members of the Panel.

5 Q Did you ever discuss it with anybody who was at
6 that meeting?

7 A [Witness Luehman] No, I don't think I did.

8 MR. REPKA: Thank you. I have no further
9 questions.

10 JUDGE BOLLWERK: Mr. Holler, are you ready, or do
11 you need a couple minutes?

12 MR. HOLLER: If I may briefly just confer for five
13 minutes?

14 JUDGE BOLLWERK: Why don't we recess then for five
15 minutes and we'll be back at ten after.

16 [Brief recess.]

17 JUDGE BOLLWERK: Be seated, please. Let's go back
18 into session. Maybe I can clarify one matter. I want to
19 make sure that I had it. I take it that all references to
20 IPS-307 in Mr. Jacobus' testimony should be IPS-107; is that
21 it?

22 MR. HOLLER: I will let Mr. Jacobus answer that
23 one.

24 WITNESS JACOBUS: That is correct.

25 JUDGE BOLLWERK: That includes the pretrial

1 testimony and his testimony on cross examination?

2 MR. HOLLER: Again, I'll ask Mr. Jacobus to
3 answer.

4 WITNESS JACOBUS: That is correct.

5 REDIRECT EXAMINATION

6 BY MR. HOLLER:

7 Q I will address this to Mr. Luehman. The Panel has
8 testified on cross examination regarding the terminal block
9 currently -- the January 11th 1984 meeting with the
10 licensee, the licensee's February 1984 letter documenting
11 that, and Information Notice 84-47.

12 Would you please describe for me the timeline or
13 the timing of these various documents?

14 A [Witness Luehman]" I think, as Mr. Shemanski
15 pointed out, the timeline really starts with the Commission
16 meeting that the Staff had with the -- on where the issue of
17 terminal block current leakage came up, which I believe he
18 said was January 6th, but it was -- in any case, if that's
19 not the exact date, it was a few days before the meeting
20 with Alabama Power at which Mr. Shemanski also testified.

21 That meeting took place on the 11th. The terminal
22 block issue was discussed as a potential concern. That was
23 the -- then there was the licensee's February 29, 1984
24 letter which was a -- their summary of the meeting that took
25 place and then the Information Notice itself was issued in,

1 I think, the June 1984 timeframe.

2 I would add that in the -- that the licensee --
3 and one other thing I guess I would say in addition to that
4 is that the test reports or the information from Sandia that
5 was issued -- that would support the conclusions or the
6 concerns of 84-47 were issued later on in 1984 in the August
7 '84 timeframe.

8 One of the things that needs to be added to that
9 is that in their document dated February 29, 1984, the
10 licensee, in response to one of the NRC comments relative to
11 Information Notices and generic correspondence in Attachment
12 2, Item 3 to that, the licensee stated that they had a
13 program to respond to all NRC generic correspondence,
14 although responses to INs and Circulars was not required to
15 be submitted to the Commission; that they would internally
16 document their resolution of those concerns.

17 That was -- and they stated that in February. And
18 that document went on to point out some Information Notices
19 that were of particular concern at that present time.
20 However, given that the Information Notice in question, 84-
21 47, wasn't an issue till July, the Staff obviously didn't
22 ask them about that particular Information Notice. But
23 their response would give the Commission -- would give the
24 Staff the impression that they would adequately respond to
25 future ones, that being 84-47 when it came out in July.

1 And then even if there wasn't enough information
2 there, when the supplement -- I mean, if there -- if it was
3 not clear what the concern was when the information was then
4 -- the test reports that supported 84-47 came out in August,
5 they could have supplemented the response to the Information
6 Notice internally.

7 Q Let me just ask the panel then, is it fair to say
8 that the information notice and the reports that amplified
9 it were available to licensees before November 30, 1985?

10 A [Witness Luehman] Yes.

11 Q Let me address this to Dr. Jacobus or to the panel
12 -- what were the loss of coolant accident LOCA temperatures
13 identified by APCO at which terminal block instrumentation
14 circuits were needed during the inspection?

15 A [Witness Jacobus] Which -- at what point in time
16 are you referring to?

17 Q Well, Dr. Jacobus, starting with the inspection.

18 A [Witness Jacobus] Okay. As I recall from the
19 inspection, there was a temperature somewhere in excess of
20 300 degrees, that we saw nothing to tell us that they did
21 not have to be qualified to that temperature. So it was
22 somewhat above 300 degrees.

23 At the meeting in Atlanta, APCO, while they didn't
24 explicitly state it, implied that the terminal blocks did
25 not have to work at temperatures above 296. They actually

1 explicitly stated they did not have to work above 296. They
2 did not explicitly state that they had to work at 206.

3 Subsequent to that, in their direct testimony I
4 believe, while they don't actually specify a temperature,
5 the temperature is implied as being 150 degrees fahrenheit.

6 Q Let me ask the panel if anyone in the panel has
7 any knowledge of precise temperatures before or after the
8 peak LOCA temperatures, at which Alabama Power Company
9 asserted to you, the blocks were required to operate?

10 A [Witness Luehman]" No more than what I just
11 mentioned.

12 A [Witness Merriweather] No.

13 Q Dr. Jacobus, in your cross-examination you
14 testified that you found a G.E. report in the procurement
15 file. But you also testified that no G.E. qualification
16 file existed. Can you please explain that for me?

17 A [Witness Jacobus]" Normally what would happen in a
18 licensee is they would receive such a qualification report,
19 and incorporate it into their entire qualification file.
20 That would include the report, an evaluation of the report,
21 the SCEW sheet, other supporting information that they might
22 need in that file.

23 The report that I found, had it been properly
24 evaluated for the temperatures which at that time we
25 believed the terminal blocks needed to be qualified to,

1 would have come to the conclusion that the terminal blocks
2 would not meet their accuracy requirements.

3 Of course, that is a qualification requirement.
4 The piece of equipment has to meet specified functional
5 performance requirements. Had the G.E. report had
6 sufficient information in it to demonstrate that the
7 terminal blocks would function at those temperatures,
8 basically what would have happened is that Alabama Power
9 would have been told that they needed to prepare an entire
10 qualification package, although the violation would have
11 been basically a documentation violation, rather than an
12 actual equipment violation.

13 Q Let me ask Mr. Luehman in follow-up to that: Do
14 you have an opinion as to whether or not the NRC would have
15 taken escalated enforcement for the situation Dr. Jacobus
16 described, the hypothetical situation?

17 A [Witness Luehman] Well, I think the answer is
18 that we, in the hypothetical situation if the test report
19 had clearly bounded the conditions required, and it was just
20 a matter of incorporating that into the file, without any
21 additional testing or extensive analysis, then it would have
22 been viewed as a violation of less significance under the
23 modified policy, and a severity level 4 or 5 violation would
24 have been issued for that.

25 Q I will address this to the panel: Dr. Jacobus, in

1 his cross-examination, testified that there were technical
2 and regulatory issues associated with the terminal blocks
3 not needed above certain temperatures. My recollection is
4 that he has informed of those technical issues. Maybe the
5 panel could explain what the regulatory issues are?

6 A [Witness Luehman] I guess I'll start out -- I
7 think it goes back to the modified policy. As Dr. Jacobus
8 stated, a technical argument can be made if you consider the
9 issues such as whether an operator in the control room will
10 be misled by an indication, when exactly the particular
11 indication or function is needed, either to be relied on as
12 an indication or to perform a trip function -- whatever the
13 case may be.

14 If those things are evaluated by the licensee, and
15 their people are trained on them prior to the discovery of
16 such a problem, like in this case, then you could probably
17 make an acceptable regulatory argument, considering the
18 technical arguments that Dr. Jacobus has made.

19 However, if the problem is discovered that there
20 is a potential accuracy problem with these devices, in this
21 case terminal blocks, and then after the fact you want to
22 make an argument that the operators may or may not have been
23 misled, that you can go on after the fact and incorporate
24 precautions into your emergency procedures, you can refine
25 your argument to see at what temperatures they will be

1 required after the fact, the modified policy -- which is the
2 enforcement and regulatory document that is in effect for
3 this inspection -- doesn't allow that.

4 The policy says that if those things, if a
5 licensee discovered those things prior to the deadline, for
6 instance, that a piece of equipment wouldn't operate as
7 required, and they put administrative controls on that
8 equipment such that it would not have adverse effects, if
9 they did that prior to the deadline -- although the
10 equipment in the plant per se would not be qualified, they
11 would have taken compensatory measures.

12 However, if they want to take those, we will not
13 consider arguments where they take compensatory measures
14 after the fact. And that is essentially what is being
15 argued here, in our opinion.

16 And, therefore, it's subsequent to the escalated
17 provisions of the modified policy.

18 Q Let me direct this question to Mr. Luehman.

19 As you finished your cross examination, you had
20 offered testimony with regard to an October, 1987 document
21 which, I believe, is marked for identification as APCo
22 Exhibit No. 52. Is this the document that you had in mind
23 when you were giving your response?

24 A [Witness Luehman] No, I don't think it is.
25 Although I think that I have seen APCo Exhibit No. 52 in the

1 course of these proceedings or the course of the document
2 exchanges and everything leading up to this actual hearing.
3 I cannot state that this document was reviewed by anybody on
4 the Staff, to my knowledge, prior to issuance of the NOV
5 that we are here on.

6 The document that I think that I was referring to
7 is Staff Exhibit No. 47, which is a January 8, 1988 letter
8 from Alabama Power Company to Region II and the subject is
9 environmental qualification of Raychem/Chico A sealant and
10 terminal blocks. That is the document that I am fairly
11 certain was reviewed by the Staff prior to the issuance of
12 the Notice of Violation.

13 Q I will address this to Dr. Jacobus. The Board has
14 already made clear that your testimony with regard to the
15 products test report, IPS-307, in fact, applies to 107. I
16 would just, to make it perfectly clear, the testimony that
17 you have offered in your direct testimony and the comments
18 that you have made today apply to 107.

19 A [Witness Jacobus] That is correct.

20 MR. HOLLER: I have no further questions.

21 JUDGE BOLLWERK: Mr. Repka.

22 MR. REPKA: I have a few questions.

23 RE-CROSS EXAMINATION

24 BY MR. REPKA:

25 Q Mr. Luehman, you referred to some of Alabama Power

1 Company's arguments on this issue as after the fact
2 assessments of compensatory measures -- I am not sure what
3 the other words you used were -- do you recall saying that?

4 A [Witness Luehman] That is correct.

5 Q And you said that modified policy precludes
6 consideration of those types of arguments?

7 A [Witness Luehman] That is correct.

8 Q And you are referring to Section 4 of the modified
9 policy; is that right?

10 A [Witness Luehman] Yes, I am referring to Section
11 4 at the bottom of Page 3 of the modified policy.

12 Q And that relates to the safety significance of
13 violations that you found; right?

14 A [Witness Luehman] I guess I don't understand
15 that.

16 Q Section 4 relates to assessments of the safety
17 significance or severity of violations that the staff has
18 found?

19 A [Witness Luehman] Section 4 is titled, "Basis for
20 Determining Civil Penalties".

21 Q And it relates to the severity level of the
22 violation; does it not?

23 A [Witness Luehman] In part, yes.

24 Q Last week we discussed the modified policy at
25 length; do you recall that?

1 A [Witness Luehman] Yes.

2 Q Before you get to severity of violation, don't you
3 have to find violation?

4 A [Witness Luehman] Yes.

5 Q True or false, an argument that relates to the
6 appropriate temperature or data needed for qualification,
7 relates to qualification?

8 A [Witness Luehman] Excuse me?

9 Q An argument related to what the appropriate
10 temperature is that needs to be evaluated for temperature is
11 a qualification issue; is it not?

12 A [Witness Luehman] That is part of it, yes.

13 Q In your redirect you also discussed the time line
14 of events on this issue; do you recall that testimony?

15 A [Witness Luehman] Yes.

16 Q You went to great pains to explain that
17 Information Notice 84-47 came out after the January 11, 1984
18 meeting.

19 A [Witness Luehman] That is correct.

20 Q Mr. Luehman, from your personal recollection of
21 this issue, what changed between January, 1984 and the
22 information notice?

23 A [Witness Luehman] What changed is simply that the
24 Staff officially took the position that the Sandia
25 information, which I think was the result of testing done in

1 1983, was significant enough to publish to the industry.
2 Prior to that point, while the Staff, as Mr. Shemanski
3 stated, had some concerns, it wasn't until the information
4 notice was issued that the Staff took the official position
5 that licensees needed to look at that. At the meetings held
6 prior to that time definitely gave licensees a heads-up on
7 that issue, but the Staff's position relative to that issue
8 wouldn't develop until the information notice was issued.

9 Q Information notices don't develop out of nowhere;
10 do they?

11 A [Witness Luehman] That is correct.

12 Q They take time to develop?

13 A [Witness Luehman] That is correct.

14 Q And this concern that you are referring to that
15 was reported in Information Notice 84-47, was known well
16 prior to that time; was it not?

17 A [Witness Luehman] It was known, yes.

18 Q Were you there?

19 A [Witness Luehman] No.

20 Q If I am a licensee and I am aware of a concern,
21 and I go to a meeting and I tell the NRC exactly what I am
22 doing about that concern and the NRC says fine, several
23 months later an information notice comes out and says,
24 here's a concern, the same concern we have already
25 addressed. Can I take no comfort in the fact that I have

1 already got a resolution to that issue?

2 A [Witness Luehman] You can take as much comfort in
3 it as is technically allowed. I think 84-47 came out -- I
4 think the NRC Staff is even willing to say that the
5 information notice, you know, alerted licensees to the
6 concern and a company like Alabama Power would say well, we
7 think we have resolved this, but then subsequent to that the
8 test data that supported that information notice came out
9 and again that would provide a second opportunity for the
10 licensees such as Alabama Power to evaluate its conclusions.
11 The Staff, because it issues it as an information notice,
12 has not looked at the generic applicability from plant to
13 plant. That is the licensee's responsibility. And in those
14 two places, the licensee was given a clear opportunity to do
15 that for their particular circumstances and not the generic
16 case.

17 Q The information notice said that the concern had
18 to be addressed.

19 A [Witness Luehman] That is addressed.

20 Q That IR values needed to be put into emergency
21 operating -- calculated into the emergency operating
22 procedures.

23 A [Witness Luehman] That's correct.

24 Q Did it say anything about what those IR values had
25 to be?

1 A [Witness Luehman] I'm not aware that it did. And
2 that was not -- my function was not to make those
3 evaluations.

4 Q So your function was to provide the perspective of
5 1987 on this issue, wasn't it?

6 A [Witness Luehman] That's not correct at all.

7 MR. REPKA: No further questions.

8 JUDGE BOLLWERK: Any questions, Mr. Holler?

9 MR. HOLLER: No, sir.

10 JUDGE BOLLWERK: All right. We will have
11 questions from the Board. Judge Carpenter.

12 BOARD EXAMINATION

13 JUDGE CARPENTER: Mr. Luehman, Mr. Holler and Mr.
14 Repka pretty well asked my questions. So, I just want to
15 ask one further one along that same line.

16 Accepting on page three of the modified
17 enforcement policy, it says the NRC will not consider the
18 actual time the equipment is required to be operable at that
19 point. On the next page item three, under corrective
20 action, including the time taken to make an operability or
21 qualification determination, there is a fine point here I'd
22 like you to help me with.

23 WITNESS LUEHMAN: Yes, sir.

24 JUDGE CARPENTER: To what extent are those two
25 perspectives compatible? One page says we won't consider it

1 and the next page says, for mitigation purposes we will. Or
2 do I read it correctly?

3 WITNESS LUEHMAN: Well, I think you read it
4 correctly. The only distinction, I think, that is made
5 there is for the purpose of deciding whether a violation
6 exists or not, we will not -- we cannot accept those
7 arguments -- or we will not accept those arguments. For the
8 purpose of and/or whether -- and in determining the severity
9 level of that argument, we will not consider those. In
10 considering how we will deal with a violation at a
11 particular severity level, in other words, the size of the
12 fine if there is going to be one, we will consider what a
13 licensee did in reponse to finding the problem.

14 But, the fact that they take good corrective
15 action after the fact does not mitigate the fact that there
16 was a violation.

17 JUDGE CARPENTER: Fine. What sort of time scale
18 is the time taken in practice? What sort of times do you
19 consider reasonable; a few months, a few days or what?

20 WITNESS LUEHMAN: Well, I think that -- for
21 corrective actions, sir?

22 JUDGE CARPENTER: Yes.

23 WITNESS LUEHMAN: I think that normally -- for
24 large undertakings, I think that adequate corrective actions
25 for violations that were found such as -- I mean, and I'm

1 not just talking about the Alabama case, because I'm not -
2 you know, I cannot recall specifically how long, you know,
3 actions to change out different equipment took Alabama Power
4 or Farley. But, some of the larger undertakings, such as
5 the significant splice change-outs, significant terminal
6 block changes, et cetera, the order of, you know, weeks or
7 months is considered an acceptable length of time for
8 corrective action.

9 JUDGE CARPENTER: Thank you for your perspective.
10 Dr. Jacobus, maybe more out of an intellectual
11 curiosity than this case, are you knowledgeable about the
12 Sandia tests of these terminal blocks?

13 WITNESS JACOBUS: Yes, I am.

14 JUDGE CARPENTER: In the Sandia tests were sprays
15 used?

16 WITNESS JACOBUS: There were chemical sprays used
17 in -- the tests were done in two phases. I believe both
18 phases did use chemical sprays. The blocks -- the terminal
19 blocks were protected by NEMA-4 enclosures during that time
20 though.

21 JUDGE CARPENTER: I'm not familiar with that
22 enclosure.

23 WITNESS JACOBUS: Oh.

24 JUDGE CARPENTER: Can you just tell me, is it --

25 WITNESS JACOBUS: It's basically --

1 JUDGE CARPENTER: -- fairly tight, very tight or
2 almost impervious?

3 WITNESS JACOBUS: Fairly tight, but clearly not
4 sealed. The cables enter the box through a conduit --
5 flexible conduit that comes into the side of the box and
6 that conduit is filled with cables, but it is not sealed.
7 Also, in the bottom of the box, there were quarter-inch what
8 we call weep holes drilled in the box to allow the pressure
9 to equalize inside and outside, otherwise the blocks will
10 collapse. The other purpose of the weep hole is to allow
11 any moisture condensation to drain out. And that's typical
12 of installations in plants.

13 JUDGE CARPENTER: The reason I was asking you,
14 when you talk about the moisture films causing the problem
15 on the blocks perhaps -- and I want to know if the case --
16 whether moisture film included sodium hydroxide and boric
17 acid was included in the test?

18 WITNESS JACOBUS: Generally, the findings of the
19 test were that the chemical sprays made little difference.
20 Because the protection of the blocks were adequate to
21 preclude the chemical spray from getting in and having
22 significant effects. That was determined by --

23 JUDGE CARPENTER: So, this degree of protection is
24 the degree you would expect throughout the industry?

25 WITNESS JACOBUS: That is correct.

1 JUDGE CARPENTER: Fine. Because I couldn't
2 understand its recovery if the film had sodium hydroxide and
3 boric acid.

4 WITNESS JACOBUS: Oh, okay.

5 JUDGE CARPENTER: Thank you very much.

6 JUDGE BOLLWERK: Judge Morris.

7 JUDGE MORRIS: I'd like to have some discussion on
8 the record here of what we're talking about, really, and as
9 I understand it, there are several categories of terminal
10 blocks, instrument control and power. Is that correct?

11 WITNESS JACOBUS: There are -- they're categorized
12 that way. In most cases, the blocks are identical, however.
13 They're not different blocks designed for those different
14 applications, in general.

15 JUDGE MORRIS: Is the controversy here restricted
16 to those blocks used in instrument loops?

17 WITNESS JACOBUS: Yes, it is.

18 JUDGE MORRIS: There was reference made to the
19 IEEE standard 323-1974. Is that equivalent to NUREG-0588,
20 or the other way around? Does 0588 reflect what's in the
21 IEEE standard?

22 WITNESS JACOBUS: NUREG-0588 Category 1
23 effectively endorses the standards in IEEE 323-1974, with
24 some exceptions.

25 Category 2 endorses IEEE 323-1971, with some

1 modifications.

2 JUDGE MORRIS: On page 11 of the testimony, in the
3 first paragraph, it says the staff issued several
4 information notices on these issues. Are there any
5 information notices on these issues that we haven't heard
6 about in the testimony so far?

7 WITNESS SHEMANSKI: Let me answer that one.

8 Basically, what I was referring to there, in terms
9 of the other information notices, as the EQ program within
10 NRC was progressing and NRC became more knowledgeable about
11 failures of equipment that normally would be on the EQ
12 master list, NRC issued a series of information notices, and
13 typically, these information notices would contain a listing
14 of the dozen or so different components and the types of
15 problems that they encountered, and that was what I was
16 referring to.

17 I don't recall specifically if terminal blocks
18 were included in those information notices. I believe they
19 were. I believe they were. Maybe someone else on the panel
20 has some additional information on that. What I'm referring
21 to is information notices in addition to 84-47.

22 WITNESS JACOBUS: I believe there was an
23 Information Notice 82-03 that was issued earlier. However,
24 that information notice was largely superseded by 84-47.

25 The series of information notices that Mr.

1 Shemanski is referring to. I am familiar with those. I
2 believe I have the numbers in my book if you're interested
3 in finding out what those numbers are.

4 JUDGE MORRIS: I'm not interested in numbers. I
5 just wanted to make sure that those that are relevant are
6 before us.

7 WITNESS JACOBUS: The major one is 84-47.

8 WITNESS LUEHMAN: But I would add, I think that we
9 -- in the course of the first-round EQ inspections, it was
10 found that -- I think that Dr. Jacobus is right --
11 Information Notice 82-03 was an information notice that
12 talked about terminal blocks.

13 One of the early concerns with terminal blocks was
14 the cleanliness of the block; in other words, getting
15 foreign material on the block and -- and possibly concerns
16 in that area, grease build-up, etcetera, and the -- that
17 information notice, while it didn't deal with the -- the --
18 the -- the subject -- the technical subject at issue here,
19 did precipitate the first of -- of some licensees going to
20 qualified splices, rather than terminal blocks, because of
21 some of these issues that the NRC was pointing out.

22 JUDGE MORRIS: Dr. Jacobus, you told us, in your
23 correction on page 13, about the fact that the relationship
24 between insulation, resistance, and temperature was not
25 linear on a semi-log plot. Were you referring to a specific

1 document where data were plotted?

2 WITNESS JACOBUS: Yes. I was referring to a plot
3 that was presented by Alabama Power at the November -- late
4 November meeting in Atlanta.

5 At that point, they took data from the Sandia test
6 reports, and they took data at -- roughly at ambient
7 temperature, at the peak LOCA temperatures, and connected
8 them and the interpolated between those two points, as if it
9 were a linear --

10 JUDGE MORRIS: Simply exponential.

11 WITNESS JACOBUS: Right. And in fact, then, we
12 subsequently plotted the actual data from the report that
13 was taken at multiple temperatures and clearly demonstrated
14 that it was not of that form.

15 JUDGE MORRIS: Were such data available to the
16 licensee?

17 WITNESS JACOBUS: That was in the test reports
18 that were issued in 1984.

19 JUDGE MORRIS: On page 20, at the top of the page,
20 the last sentence of that unfinished paragraph states,
21 "Private plant records indicate that the terminal blocks
22 were installed prior to November 30, 1985."

23 What records were those, please?

24 WITNESS MERRIWEATHER: Basically what we are
25 saying there is we didn't have any indication that they had

1 been changed out.

2 JUDGE MORRIS: Were terminal blocks installed in
3 the penetrations?

4 WITNESS MERRIWEATHER: So we didn't have reference
5 to show that they were changed out.

6 E MORRIS: If there were changed out, there
7 would have been records, is that correct?

8 WITNESS MERRIWEATHER: Should have been done by
9 plant modifications or something like that, yes.

10 WITNESS JACOBUS: We also have the EQ response. I
11 believe it's APCo Exhibit 52 that delineated what circuits
12 had terminal blocks in them and it was our understanding
13 that those terminal blocks were installed at the time,
14 basically at the time the plant was put together.

15 WITNESS MERRIWEATHER: Also I believe in their
16 response to the circular 78-08 they indicated that they had,
17 states terminal blocks installed. That was for Unit 1, I
18 believe.

19 JUDGE MORRIS: Could you give me some idea of how
20 many terminal blocks you are talking about inside
21 containment?

22 MR. JACOBUS: Yes. There is a listing in I
23 believe in APCo Exhibit 52 that lists each terminal block
24 with the associated instrumentation circuit that it's used
25 in. I think it would be best to refer you to that, if that

1 is acceptable.

2 JUDGE MORRIS: That's fine.

3 It isn't clear what you were implying in your
4 discussion of testing at 137.5 volts as to whether this
5 would have meaning for performance of lesser voltages.

6 MR. MERRIWEATHER: What I meant by that was I
7 think during the inspection we accepted the qualification
8 for these terminal blocks and those control circuits such as
9 solenoid valves, the limit switches, whatever. We had
10 accepted the qualification. We felt that that document was
11 adequate for those types of circuits.

12 JUDGE MORRIS: But not for instrumentation
13 circuits?

14 MR. MERRIWEATHER: But not for instrumentation
15 circuits because of the performance requirements for
16 instrument accuracy.

17 JUDGE MORRIS: Thank you. I have no further
18 questions.

19 JUDGE BOLLWERK: I think Judge Carpenter has other
20 questions.

21 JUDGE CARPENTER: I'd like to follow up on Judge
22 Morris's questions.

23 Do you have Staff Exhibit 50, Dr. Jacobus?

24 MR. JACOBUS: Yes. I have it here.

25 JUDGE CARPENTER: If you would help me with the

1 legend, please.

2 MR. JACOBUS: Okay.

3 JUDGE CARPENTER: The solid blocks are labelled
4 Alabama Power Company data, EB 25 end points. What's EB,
5 please?

6 MR. JACOBUS: The EB 25s are a type of terminal
7 blocks that were tested in the Sandia tests.

8 At the meeting in Atlanta APCo used that data to
9 come up with end points through which they drew the straight
10 line that I discussed earlier.

11 JUDGE CARPENTER: So Alabama Power does not have
12 any original data? This is data from a Sandia report?

13 MR. JACOBUS: Well, they have their data from the
14 Conax Report on the Connectron blocks.

15 They also have the data in the GE test reports.

16 JUDGE CARPENTER: Let's just stay with Staff
17 Exhibit 50, please.

18 MR. JACOBUS: Yes, this data was taken from the
19 Sandia test report.

20 JUDGE CARPENTER: On the right-hand side in the
21 legend, it shows the triangles, this EB 25 complete plot.

22 MR. JACOBUS: Okay.

23 JUDGE CARPENTER: Do I read this correctly that
24 the Alabama Power Company data points of which there are two
25 came from the document that has the EB 25 complete plot data

1 points?

2 MR. JACOBUS: I am not quite sure I got that
3 question. Could you repeat it, please?

4 JUDGE CARPENTER: Am I correct in thinking that
5 the Alabama Power Company data labelled EB 20 end points
6 came from the same document as the triangle data points EB
7 25 complete plot?

8 MR. JACOBUS: Yes, that's correct.

9 JUDGE CARPENTER: Why don't the triangle and the
10 box at 345 degrees line up?

11 MR. JACOBUS: There were actually two peak LOCA
12 temperatures in these tests.

13 The one that they used was from the, I believe the
14 first peak, because basically what happens is the
15 temperature goes up to 340 degrees and then comes back.

16 They took the data from that first transient where
17 there was only data from ambient temperature and 340
18 degrees.

19 The data I used was from the second transient
20 where in addition to data at the peak temperature there was
21 data throughout the range of temperatures coming back down
22 to essentially ambient temperatures.

23 JUDGE CARPENTER: So there is a certain amount of
24 hysteresis here depending on the cycle?

25 MR. JACOBUS: Exactly.

1 JUDGE CARPENTER: In presenting this data to you
2 and to the NRC, did Alabama Power indicate that they had
3 ignored the data at the intervening temperatures?

4 MR. JACOBUS: They didn't explicitly state that
5 but of course all they showed was the end point data so all
6 you can assume is that they didn't consider the remaining
7 data.

8 JUDGE CARPENTER: Did you or anyone at the meeting
9 inquire as to why they hadn't considered the intervening
10 data?

11 MR. JACOBUS: Well, my best guess is that the
12 intervening data shows that it is not linear and that's not
13 the answer they needed to show.

14 JUDGE CARPENTER: They were trying to estimate the
15 insulation resistance at some particular temperature.

16 What was that temperature?

17 MR. JACOBUS: To the best of my knowledge it was
18 296 degrees F. They need to show at that temperature that
19 the insulation resistance was above 5 times 10 to the 5th
20 ohms.

21 JUDGE CARPENTER: Since there is an observation at
22 300 degrees, why is it necessary to interpolate given the
23 data set?

24 MR. JACOBUS: That was the question that we wanted
25 to know.

1 JUDGE CARPENTER: Did you get an answer?

2 MR. JACOBUS: No. We basically at that meeting we
3 made a rough plot just like this, a handwritten plot that
4 showed this data effectively and at that point everybody
5 left the meeting and it was decided that they were going to
6 replace the terminal blocks because they couldn't show they
7 were qualified.

8 JUDGE CARPENTER: But just -- they were looking
9 for evidence for what the resistance would be at 295
10 degrees, and there was an observation at 300 and they
11 ignored it?

12 MR. JACOBUS: I think you need to ask them that
13 question.

14 JUDGE CARPENTER: I shall, thank you.

15 MR. JACOBUS: Thank you.

16 JUDGE BOLLWERK: Judge Morris, just as a matter of
17 curiosity, you indicated that the terminal blocks had been
18 replaced?

19 MR. JACOBUS: That is correct, to the best of my
20 knowledge.

21 JUDGE MORRIS: We will ask the Applicant -- the
22 licensee, I should say.

23 JUDGE BOLLWERK: I have a couple of questions.

24 This is by way of explanation as to what's clear
25 in my mind.

1 Where did the temperature of 300 degrees come from
2 again? You mentioned it started at 300, then 296 you
3 thought, then 150.

4 Where did the 300 degrees come from?

5 MR. JACOBUS: It was somewhere in excess of 300
6 degrees. I believe they had two different temperature
7 profiles that we saw at different times. One was for a
8 combined LOCA HELB, loss of coolant accident, high energy
9 line break.

10 I believe that one went to somewhere in excess of
11 350, something like 365.

12 At another point I saw one that was only for LOCA
13 conditions that I believe was something like 310. That's
14 why I say somewhere in excess of 300 without being totally
15 specific because it's still not clear to me whether they
16 need them for high energy line breaks or LOCAs or both or
17 when, when they need them and when they don't.

18 JUDGE BOLLWERK: These were shown to you at what
19 point?

20 MR. JACOBUS: I believe during the initial
21 inspection they showed us the combined profile, which went
22 to 365 degrees.

23 JUDGE BOLLWERK: What about the second one you
24 mentioned?

25 WITNESS JACOBUS: I believe I saw that more

1 recently. Norm thinks that it is in their testimony. I am
2 not sure exactly where I saw it, but I did see a profile
3 that I believed to be LOCA conditions that goes to only
4 approximately 310 degrees.

5 JUDGE BOLLWERK: But the 365 degree one, your
6 recollection is you didn't see that -- you were shown that
7 during the inspection?

8 WITNESS JACOBUS: I believe that to be the case.

9 JUDGE BOLLWERK: Mr. Luehman, I believe I have
10 asked you this question before and I think the answer is
11 fairly clear. But I take it that 84-47 is the basic
12 document on which you relied or clearly known or should have
13 known in this instance?

14 WITNESS LUEHMAN: That and as Mr. Shemanski said,
15 the NRC's -- maybe warning is too strong -- but their
16 discussion of this issue in their January meeting and also
17 the information notice supported by the actual issuance of
18 the test reports that support that information notice later
19 in 1984.

20 JUDGE BOLLWERK: I take it looking at it -- Judge
21 Morris, I think, asked a question about the testimony on
22 Page 20 of the Farley Plant records indicate that "terminal
23 blocks were installed prior to November 30, 1985". I take
24 it that that is an important fact because given the
25 enforcement policy, November 30, 1985 is a date on which you

1 are looking in terms of qualification and equipment.

2 WITNESS LUEKMAN: That is correct. If there
3 happened to be a case where a licensee had splices in there
4 and then for some reason, you know, went to terminal blocks
5 after they had splices in there, then the equipment could
6 have been qualified before the deadline and unqualified
7 after the deadline, not with specific regard to terminal
8 blocks or instrument circuits like this, but we did have one
9 case of that in the modified policy where a licensee had
10 something where the NRC would have qualified in a particular
11 application and changed it out after the deadline.

12 JUDGE BOLLWERK: Was that considered a violation
13 of the policy statement?

14 WITNESS LUEHMAN: No, it was not considered under
15 the modified policy; no, sir.

16 JUDGE BOLLWERK: And in an instance -- this is
17 just a matter of information -- of taking the flip side, if
18 they had something they later put in and inspected it that
19 was qualified, but prior to 1985 they may have had a piece
20 of equipment you would have considered unqualified but it
21 was no longer there by the time you inspected, did you go
22 back and see on November 30, 1985 what equipment was there?

23 WITNESS LUEHMAN: I think that the answer to that
24 is that at the time of the inspection, that the inspectors
25 basically -- and I will defer to inspectors for this

1 particular inspection -- but as a general rule we discussed
2 this in the modified policy meetings -- I mean, in our
3 review panel meetings -- as a general rule inspectors didn't
4 go back and try to track what documents and what the status
5 of the qualification file and exactly what equipment was in
6 the plant at November 30, 1985. Basically, what the
7 inspectors did is they looked at the files the day they got
8 on site, and judged the licensee's qualification and status
9 relative to the modified policy based on those files, unless
10 there was clear evidence that the licensee had, in fact, had
11 different equipment prior to the deadline. In other words,
12 the inspectors did not try to go back and play detective
13 because in very many cases -- for instance, I will give you
14 an example.

15 The licensees were making -- lots of licensees
16 were enhancing their files after the deadline prior to the
17 inspections. They might have had many revisions to their
18 files. The inspectors simply did not have the time to go
19 back and unless there was an obvious reason to, go back and
20 determine exactly what part of that revision was -- how much
21 of that revision was in there prior to the deadline and how
22 much wasn't. Basically, licensees got the benefit of the
23 doubt with regard to the status of their files unless there
24 was clear information to the contrary, such as the NRC did,
25 if licensee event reports were submitted, notify the

1 Commission that the licensee had discovered unqualified
2 equipment prior to the deadline, it may have been the case
3 that when we got there for the inspection, that equipment
4 had been changed out. However, the NRC would, because they
5 were on clear notice that the licensee had unqualified
6 equipment at the deadline, look at that type of information
7 if the licensee had been required to report it. But we did
8 not make an effort, I don't think as a general rule
9 inspectors made an effort to try to recover the file status
10 as of the deadline. That was just too difficult of a task.

11 Q So, if a licensee changed his qualification
12 documentation but didn't tell you that he had done it, as
13 opposed to someone who told you that they did have a
14 problem, he might be penalized; is that it?

15 WITNESS LUEHMAN: Excuse me?

16 Q If someone changed out their qualification
17 documentation, but did not tell you that there was a
18 problem, as opposed to another utility which might have come
19 in and said there is a problem here which we are identifying
20 to the NRC, the second utility is going to be penalized
21 rather than the first.

22 WITNESS LUEHMAN: Well like I said, I think that
23 there is a certain amount of reasonableness that goes into
24 it. I think the answer to that in a particular case may be
25 yes, there may have been individual licensees that radically

1 changed their documents after the deadline and who were not
2 under any requirements to report to us because of the
3 reporting requirements, and we may not have known that.
4 However, there were other cases where it was clearly evident
5 that either through reports or through complete file
6 reconstruction, that the inspector would have picked up if,
7 in fact, the whole thing had been created after the
8 deadline. And that would not have necessarily been
9 acceptable.

10 JUDGE BOLLWERK: Did you have any evidence,
11 though, of Alabama Power changing any documents in this
12 instance?

13 WITNESS LUEHMAN: Changing any documents?

14 JUDGE BOLLWERK: Or updating their file after the
15 deadline? I take it you gave them credit for that.

16 WITNESS LUEHMAN: I think the answer to that in
17 the Alabama Power case is that they, in fact, were updating
18 their documents and I think at the time of the inspection
19 and we looked at the files that they had, and I don't think
20 that there was any attempt on the part of the inspectors to
21 take those files back to November 30, 1985. We accepted
22 what was in the file as of the date of the inspection; isn't
23 that correct?

24 WITNESS MERRIWEATHER: That is correct.

25 JUDGE BOLLWERK: Does everyone agree with that?

1 WITNESS JACOBUS: That is correct.

2 JUDGE BOLLWERK: One other question. In terms --
3 we talked about in terms of documentation being updated, if
4 in a situation where you had your documentation up to date,
5 for instance with the GEMS Level transmitter question, my
6 understanding is that that was a problem with the equipment
7 when you looked at it and not with the documentation; am I
8 correct in that assumption?

9 WITNESS LUEHMAN: That is correct. If the oil had
10 been to the full level, their documents were satisfactory to
11 qualify it with the oil level full.

12 JUDGE BOLLWERK: Do you know the status of that
13 piece of equipment, the oil level as of November 30, 1985?
14 Is that a relevant consideration?

15 WITNESS LUEHMAN: I think it is, but I think that
16 Mr. Levis is the person that inspected that piece of
17 equipment, and my recollection is that he could find no
18 indications that that was not, in fact, the equipment status
19 as of deadline.

20 I think you would have to ask him that question.

21 JUDGE BOLLWERK: With respect to the grease
22 problem, is there anything in the record that you're aware
23 of that indicates what the status of the grease in the
24 particular piece of machinery was as of November 30, 1985?

25 WITNESS LUEHMAN: I think the answer is that --

1 that -- again, I'd have to defer to the inspectors, but I
2 think that it was a similar -- the similar answer is that --
3 that we had no indication that it had been changed
4 subsequent to November 30, 1985, and the position the -- the
5 staff has taken is that, absent indication that it was
6 changed after the deadline, licensees shouldn't be rewarded
7 for failure to have adequate documents.

8 In other words, a licensee that has no documents
9 and therefore can tell us when they did something would get
10 a benefit by not having those documents, whereas a licensee
11 that had documents that indicated that they did something
12 either before or after a fact would then, in fact, receive a
13 potentially increased sanction.

14 So, I think you'd have to talk to the inspectors
15 involved in those two things as to how they reached those
16 conclusions.

17 JUDGE BOLLWERK: All right.

18 I have no further questions. Anybody else have
19 anything?

20 JUDGE CARPENTER: I might ask one, being lazy.

21 Dr. Jacobus, can you recall who presented this
22 two-point plot of insulation resistance versus temperature
23 at the meeting?

24 WITNESS JACOBUS: I'r not absolutely certain, but
25 I believe it was Jesse Love from the licensee.

1 JUDGE CARPENTER: Thank you. I'll ask him.

2 WITNESS JACOBUS: I'm not absolutely certain on
3 that point.

4 JUDGE BOLLWERK: I think there is nothing further
5 for the panel. Then I guess we will excuse this panel of
6 witnesses.

7 I think, with regard to Mr. Jacobus, Mr.
8 Merriweather, and Mr. Shemanski, you are finished in terms
9 of your direct examination and cross examination. The Board
10 thanks you for your testimony and your service to the Board,
11 and you are subject to recall at any time deemed necessary.

12 Mr. Luehman, I think we'll be seeing you again.

13 WITNESS LUEHMAN: Yes, sir.

14 [Panel excused.]

15 JUDGE BOLLWERK: Mr. Holler, you have some
16 business to take care of with some exhibits, I think.

17 MR. HOLLER: Yes, sir.

18 If I may, at this time, we would like to move that
19 certain exhibits be admitted into evidence: what has been
20 marked for identification as Staff Exhibit No. 47, EQ of
21 Raychem Chico sealant and terminal blocks, a letter from
22 R.P. McDonald to D.M. Verrelli dated January 8, 1988; what
23 has previously been marked as Staff Exhibit No. 48, IE
24 Information Notice No. 84-47, EQ test of electrical terminal
25 blocks dated June 15, 1984; what has previously been marked

1 for identification as Staff Exhibit No. 49, terminal block
2 insulation versus temperature graph, 11/25, Figure A1-21,
3 page 210, source SNL report SAND 83-1617, undated; what has
4 previously been marked for identification as Staff Exhibit
5 No. 50, insulation resistance versus temperature chart
6 number 1, data based on SAND 83-1617, undated; and what has
7 previously been marked for identification as Staff Exhibit
8 No. 51, insulation resistance versus temperature chart
9 number 2, data based on SAND 83-1617, undated.

10 At this time, I move that Exhibits 47, 48, 49, 50,
11 and 51 be admitted into evidence.

12 JUDGE BOLLWERK: Any objection?

13 MR. REPKA: No objection to any of those.

14 JUDGE BOLLWERK: Then Staff Exhibits 47, 48, 49,
15 50, and 51 are received into evidence.

16 [Staff Exhibit Nos. 47, 48, 49, 50,
17 and 51 were received in evidence.]

18 JUDGE BOLLWERK: Anything further from either of
19 the parties at this point?

20 MR. REPKA: Nothing here.

21 MR. HOLLER: If I may remind the Board of our
22 discussions on Friday, we indicated we would have a starting
23 time of a half-hour later to allow one of our witnesses time
24 to get here.

25 JUDGE BOLLWERK: Correct.

1 Yes, Mr. Hancock.

2 MR. HANCOCK: Just one thing, Judge Bollwerk. The
3 Board had mentioned last week an interest in seeing a 5-to-1
4 splice. We have two examples that were sent up this
5 weekend, made down at the plant.

6 The Board has agreed that those are, in fact, 5-
7 to-1 splices. That's as far as they're willing -- excuse
8 me. The staff has agreed that those are, in fact, 5-to-1
9 splices.

10 That's as far as they are willing to go, and we
11 will hear some testimony on that when Alabama Power Company
12 puts on its evidence.

13 JUDGE BOLLWERK: Do either of the parties have any
14 intention to mark these for identification as exhibits or to
15 move them into evidence?

16 MR. REPKA: Judge Bollwerk, what we propose to do
17 is, when we present our technical panel, the Jones, Love,
18 Sundergill panel, we would like to take each of the
19 demonstrative pieces of evidence, have them explain it, and
20 then, at that time -- I don't think -- will we move them
21 into evidence?

22 I don't believe -- we're using them for
23 demonstrative purposes, but what we would like the witnesses
24 to do is to explain what they are, what they represent, and
25 do that as an adjunct to our direct case.

1 MR. MILLER: In some instances, we have a
2 photograph, say, of the ChicoA/Raychem seal or the V-type
3 splices, and it's easier to have something you're holding
4 onto when you describe it, and in that instance, we probably
5 wouldn't want to introduce it.

6 I don't think we've got a photograph of those, and
7 what we may do is describe it for the record, then take a
8 picture of it, put the picture in the record.

9 JUDGE BOLLWERK: All right.

10 MR. MILLER: It would just a burden on the clerk,
11 I think, to start keeping up with all of the --

12 JUDGE BOLLWERK: We can certainly -- if you think
13 it's necessary, we can mark them and keep them. I mean it's
14 up to you. If not, we'll give them back to you.

15 MR. MILLER: Well, said that way, Judge, you can
16 keep them. We have others.

17 JUDGE BOLLWERK: The question is are we going to
18 put them in a file and send them up to White Flint at some
19 point? I don't know if that's necessary for this proceeding
20 or not.

21 MR. MILLER: If we have the option, then we might
22 as well go ahead and mark them, and we'll do that in our
23 direct case, so it will be an orderly process.

24 JUDGE BOLLWERK: All right.

25 JUDGE CARPENTER: Mr. Miller, I would point out

1 that there is an excellent cross-sectional drawing of this
2 5-to-1 in whatever number staff's exhibit, Mr. Holler's
3 letter.

4 Do you happen to recall, Mr. Holler?

5 MR. HOLLER: Let me double-check that, Judge.

6 MR. MILLER: Yes, sir.

7 MR. REPKA: We did discuss that during the
8 testimony on this issue. We're familiar with that.

9 MR. HOLLER: Just to answer your question, Judge
10 Carpenter, that would be what's been marked and admitted as
11 Staff Exhibit No. 58.

12 JUDGE CARPENTER: So that, if one were trying to
13 describe the situation, that drawing serves quite well, even
14 better than a photograph.

15 MR. MILLER: Thank you, sir.

16 MR. BACHMANN: Your Honor, the staff would, in the
17 future, object to it being admitted into evidence if it were
18 stated or represented that this was a splice exactly the
19 same as in the plant.

20 The staff is willing to say this is a 5-to-1
21 splice, and you can look and see that there are five cables
22 going in and that there's tape around them and one coming
23 out.

24 I have been informed by my people who were
25 actually at the plant and who, unfortunately, are no longer

1 able to be on the -- be brought up here, that the splices
2 that they saw looked considerably different from these.

3 So, as a sample of what a general 5-to-1 splice
4 is, we have no objection. We would strenuously object to
5 say that these splices are the way they looked in the plant.

6 MR. MILLER: That's just makes -- we'll present
7 our description, and we still have an evidentiary point
8 conflict. We'll need to take a ruling.

9 JUDGE BOLLWERK: All right. One other thing: I'm
10 going to have to do some checking in terms of physical
11 exhibits, but I'm not sure if we're going to need three of
12 these or not. Let me check that out and see. I hope not,
13 put it that way.

14 Is there anything else that the parties have?

15 MR. REPKA: Nothing else.

16 JUDGE BOLLWERK: All right. We stand in recess
17 then until 9:30 tomorrow morning.

18 [Whereupon at 12:21 p.m. the hearing was recessed,
19 to reconvene the following day, Wednesday, February 19, 1992
20 at 9:30 a.m.]

21

22

23

24

25

REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

This is to certify that the attached proceedings
before the United States Nuclear Regulatory
Commission
in the matter of:

NAME OF PROCEEDING: Alabama Power Company

DOCKET NUMBER: 50-348-CivP,
50-364-CivP

PLACE OF PROCEEDING: Bethesda, Maryland

were held as herein appears, and that this is the
original transcript thereof for the file of the
United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission taken
by me and thereafter reduced to typewriting by me
or under the direction of the court reporting
company, and that the transcript is a true and
accurate record of the foregoing proceedings.

Lynn Estes

Official Reporter
Ann Riley & Associates, Ltd.